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! C L A S S A C T I O N C O M P L A I N T

, Plainti ff K el ly Saunder s (c'plainti ff ') brings thi s class action complaint

D individually and on behalf of al l other s simi larly situated, and, through her

G under signed counsel, complains against D efendant F iveStars L oyalty , Inc.

K (ccF iveStars" o r c'D efendant" ) to stop D efendant's pract ice of sendin g

M unsol ici ted text message adv erti sements to cel lu lar telephones, and to obtain

O r edress for al l persons inj ured by D efendant's conduct. Plainti ff, for her class

Q action complaint, al leges as follow s upon personal knowledge as to herself and

T her own acts and experiences, and, as to al l other matters, upon information and

!U bel ief, based on , among other th ings, the investigation conducted by her

!! atto r n ey s .

l , N A T U R E O F T H E A C T I O N

!D l In a m isguided effort to promote its custom ers' bu sin esses

!G D efendant engaged in a n especial ly in v a si v e form of m arketing : the

!K tran sm ission o f un auth or ized adv ertisem en ts in the form o f text m essage cal ls to

l M the cel lular telephones o f un w ift ing consum er s throughout the nation .

l O , . B y effectuating th ese unauthorized text m essage adv erti sem ents

!Q ( 'cw i reless spam ">, D efen dant h as violated consum er s' statutory rights and h as

!T caused consum er s actual harm , not only because consum ers w ere subj ected to

, U the aggravation and invasion o f priv acy th at necessari ly accom pan ies w ireless

, ! spam , but also because consum ers frequently hav e to pay thei r cel l ph one

, , serv ice providers for th e receipt of such w i reless spam , incur a usage al location

, D deduction from the total num ber o f text m essages al low ed under their cel l

, G phone p lan, or pay a fi xed or variable u sage fee.

, S D . I n order to redress th ese inj uries, P lainti f f , on b ehal f of hersel f and

, M a nationw ide class of sim ilarly situated in div idu als, brings suit un der the

,O T elephone C on sumer Protect ion A ct , GO U .S .C . Q ,,O, et seq. ("GO U .S .C . Q

, Q

  p

1 CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

2 Plaintiff Kelly Saunders ("Plaintiff') brings this class action complaint 

3 individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, and, through her 

4 undersigned counsel, complains against Defendant FiveStars Loyalty, Inc. 

5 (''FiveStars" or "Defendant") to stop Defendant's practice of sending 

6 unsolicited text message advertisements to cellular telephones, and to obtain 

7 redress for all persons injured by Defendant's conduct. Plaintiff, for her class 

8 action complaint, alleges as fallows upon personal knowledge as to herself and 

9 her own acts and experiences, and, as to all other matters, upon information and 

1 O belief, based on, among other things, the investigation conducted by her 

l1 attorneys. 

12 NATURE OF THE ACTION 

13 1. In a misguided effort to promote its customers' businesses 

14 Defendant engaged in an especially invasive form of marketing: the 

15 transmission of unauthorized advertisements in the form of text message calls to 

16 the cellular telephones of unwitting consumers throughout the nation. 

17 2. By effectuating these unauthorized text message advertisements 

18 ("wireless spam"), Defendant has violated consumers' statutory rights and has 

19 caused consumers actual··harm, not only because consumers were subjected to 

20 the aggravation and invasion of privacy that necessarily accompanies wireless 

21 spam, but also because consumers frequently have to pay their cell phone 

22 service providers for the receipt of such wireless spam, incur a usage allocation 

23 deduction from the total number of text messages allowed under their cell 

24 phone plan, or pay a fixed or variable usage fee. 

25 3. In order to redress these injuries, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and 

26 a nationwide class of similarly situated individuals, brings suit under the 

27 Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq. (''47 U.S.C. § 

28 
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! ""#") (the c'T CPA 'j), which prohibits unsolicited text message advertisements

" to cel l phones.

C D . O n behal f of the class, Pla;nti ff seek s an inj un ction requiring

D D efen dant to cease sen din g al l un authorized automated text messages, an award

L of the greater of actual or statutory damages to the class, together with costs and

N r easonable attom eys' fees, as w ell as pre-j udgment interest from the date of

# fi l ing th is su it .

P P A R T I E S

U L . P l a i nt i ff is a c i t i z en an d a r es i d en t o f N ev ad a .

!W N . D efendant F iveStars L oyalty, Inc. is a Cal i fom ia Corporation w ith

! ! its principal place of business located in San Francisco, Califom ia. A provider

!" of digi tal mark eting serv ices and customer loyalty pr ogram s, D efendant does

!C busin ess thr ough out the U nited States, in clu din g in thi s D i strict.

!D J U R I S D I C T I O N & V E N U E

!L # . Th is Court has federal question su bj ect m atter j urisdiction under

!N "P U .S.C . $ !CCl , as the action ari ses under the fed eral Telephone Consum er

l # P rotect i on A ct , D # U .S .C . P ""#.

!P P . Th is Court has personal j urisdiction over D efen dant becau se

l U D e f e n d a n t d o e s b u s in e ss i n th i s D i st r i c t .

" W U . V enue is prop er in th e Southem D i stri ct of Cal i fom ia, becau se

" ! D efendant conducts business in this D istri ct, an d b ecause a sub stant ial p art o f

" " the events con cem ing the conduct at issue occurred in this D i strict, as the

" C unauthorized text m essage cal ls origin ated fr om a short code uti l ized by

" D D e fe n d a n t i n th i s D i st r i c t .

" L C O M M O N A L L E G A T I O N S O F F A C T

" N ! W . O ne of the n ew er types of inexpen sive m arketing is text m essages

" # that are d eli vered in bulk th rough "short codes." Th e tern? "short code" refers

" P to a messt ing system t t allows mobile mat tting provid%s st ch as
C l ass A cti on C om pl ai nt C

1 227") (the "TCPA"), which prohibits unsolicited text message advertisements 

2 to cell phones. 

3 4. On behalf of the class, Plaintiff seeks an injunction reqmrmg 

4 Defendant to cease sending all unauthorized automated text messages, an award 

5 of the greater of actual or statutory damages to the class, together with costs and 

6 reasonable attorneys' fees, as well as pre-judgment interest from the date of 

7 filing this suit. 

8 

9 

10 

5. 

6. 

PARTIES 

Plaintiff is a citizen and a resident of Nevada. 

Defendant FiveStars Loyalty, Inc. is a California Corporation with 

11 its principal place of business located in San Francisco, California. A provider 

12 of digital marketing services and customer loyalty programs, Defendant does 

13 business throughout the United States, including in this District. 

14 JURISDICTION & VENUE 

15 7. This Court has federal question subject matter jurisdiction under 

16 28 U.S.C. § 1331, as the action arises under the federal Telephone Consumer 

17 Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227. 

18 8. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because 

19 Defendant does business in this District. 

20 9. Venue is proper in the Southern District of California, because 

21 Defendant conducts business in this District, and because a substantial part of 

22 the events concerning the conduct at issue occurred in this District, as the 

23 unauthorized text message calls originated from a short code utilized by 

24 Defendant in this District. 

25 COMMON ALLEGATIONS OF FACT 

26 10. One of the newer types of inexpensive marketing is text messages 

27 that are delivered in bulk through "short codes." The term "short code" refers 

28 to a messaging system that allows mobile marketing providers such as 
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! D efendant, and other businesses, to transmit short text messages (usual ly

7 l imited to !89 characters) en masse to consumers' cel lular telephones with

? m in imal effort, expen se and ov er sight.

B ! !. Short codes are regularly util ized by mark eting and advertising

F com pan ies su ch a s D e fen d a n t F iv e S ta r s to sen d gen eric text m essages

8 advertising their customers' services, goods and promotions to thousands of

H consum ers instantan eously .

I !7 . U n l ik e m o r e c o n v en t i o n a l adv ert i sem ent s, t e x t m e ssa g e

K advertisements sent via short codes in vade con sumer s' privacy an d can actual ly

l O cost recipients money , because cell phone users lik e Plaintiff have to pay their

! ! r espective wireless service prov iders for each text message call they receive,

!7 incur a usage al location deduction to their text plan , or pay a fi xed or variable

l ? usage fee, regardless of w hether or not the message is authorized.

!B l ? . In addition , w ireless spam is particu larly invasiv e becau se when

l F such text message cal l s are made the recipient's cel l phon e rings, alertin g him

! 8 or her th at a cal l i s being received. A s cel lular teleph on es are inh erently m obi le

l H and are frequ ently carried on their ow ner 's person , text m essage cal ls m ay be

! I r eceived by the cal led party vi rtu al ly anywhere worldw ide, at anytime.

l K !B . B eginning at least as early as 79l B, D efendant h as cau sed the m ass

7 9 tran sm ission of w i reless sp am to the cel l ph ones o f indiv iduals i t hoped w ere

7 ! potential purchasers of its cu stom ers' products and services.

7 7 !F . F or instance, on or about Janu ary l ?, 79!H, Plaint i ff s cel lular

7 ? teleph one rang , indicat ing that a tex t cal l w as bein g receiv ed .

7 B !8 . Th e c'from " field of the tran sm ission w as identi fi ed cryptical ly as

ZF ccFHeZHH," w hich i s a short-code ow ned and operated by D efen dant and/or its

7 8 agents. T he body of the text m essage read:

7 H

7 I

C la ss A ct i on C om p la i nt B

1 Defendant, and · other businesses, to transmit short text messages ( usually 

2 limited to 160 characters) en masse to consumers' cellular telephones with 

3 minimal effort, expense and oversight. 

4 11. Short codes are regularly utilized by marketing and advertising 

5 companies - such as Defendant FiveStars - to send generic text messages 

6 advertising their customers' services, goods and promotions to thousands of 

7 consumers instantaneously. 

8 12. Unlike more conventional advertisements, text message 

9 advertisements sent via short codes invade consumers' privacy and can actually 

1 O cost recipients money, because cell "phone users like Plaintiff have to pay their 

11 respective wireless service providers for each text message call they receive, 

12 incur a usage allocation deduction to their text plan, or pay a fixed or.variable 

13 usage fee, regardless of whether or not the message is authorized. 

14 13. In addition, wireless spam is particularly invasive because when 

15 such text message calls are made the recipient's cell phone· rings, alerting him 

16 or her that a call is being received. As cellular telephones are inherently mobile 

17 and are frequently carried on their owner's person, text message calls may be 

18 received by the called party virtually anywhere worldwide, .at anytime. 

19 14. Beginning at least as early as 2014, Defendant has caused the mass 

20 transmission of wireless spam to the cell phones of individuals it hoped were 

21 potential purchasers of its customers' products and services. 

22 15. For instance, on or about January 13, 2017, Plaintiff's cellular 

23 telephone rang, indicating that a text call was being received. 

24 16. The "from" field of the transmission was identified cryptically as 

25 "578277," which is a short-code owned and operated by Defendant and/or its 

26 agents. The body of the text message read: 

27 

28 
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l

"

H C  e n n i a l l o c a t i o n o n l y . R e l y i i  S t o c ] it pm . E x p 6 / " 8 . f o r b e st s e l e c t i o n . H u n d r e d s o f i t e m s c h o o s e f r o m . T e x t O F E ! t o st o p

D 68 . T he u se of an SM S short code by D efen dant and its agents en abled

H D efendant's mass transmi ssion of w ireless spam, in clu din g the above text

M message, to a l ist of hundreds or thousands of cellu lar telephone numbers

N instantan eou sly .

8 l O . A t n o time did P 6ainti ff prov ide any con sent, in clu din g any prior

O express written consent, to receive the above-referenced message or any other

S such w ireless spam from D efendant, i ts agents, or custom ers.

6T 6S . T he unauthorized text message adv erti sement received by P lainti ff

6 6 invaded her privacy , constituted a nuisance, interfered with her unrestricted use

l " o f h er cell ph on e, includin g tak ing up m em ory storage space, and requ ired h er

6D to spend tim e review ing and deletin g the m essage from h er cell ph on e.

6H C L A S S A C T I O N A L L E G A T I O N S

6M " T . P lainti ff brings this action pursuant to F ederal R ule o f C iv i l

6N Procedure "D(b)(") an d R ule "D(b)(D) on behal f of h ersel f and a nationw ide

l 8 class (th e ccC lass") defi ned as : A l l per sons in the U ni ted States an d i ts

6O T erri tories w ho , sin ce O ctober 6N, "T6D, w ere sent one or m or e text m essage

l S advert i sements from D efen dant on th eir cellular teleph on es and for w hom

" T D efendant do es not hav e a record of any prior express w ri ften con sent to

" 6 receive such m essages.

" " " 6 . U pon in form at ion and b el i ef , there are hundreds, i f not th ou sands,

" D of m em bers of the Class such that j o inder of al l m em bers is impracti.cable.

" H " " . P lainti ff w i l l fairly and adequ ately represent and protect the

" M i n te r est s o f t h e o th e r m em b er s o f th e C l a ss . P l a i n t i f f h a s r e ta i n ed c ou n se l w ith

" N substantial experience in pro secuting com plex l i tigation and class action s.

" 8 P lainti f f and her counsel are com m i tted to v ig orously prosecuti.ng th is action on

" O

  p

1 

2 

3 

Hurry for best selection. Hundreds of items to choose from. 
Centennial location only. Re_ply YES to claim. Exp 1/27. 

Text OFF to stop 

1 7. The use of an SMS short code by Defendant and its agents enabled 

4 Defendant's mass transmission of wireless spam, including the above text 

5 message, to a list of hundreds or thousands of cellular telephone numbers 

6 instantaneously. 

7 18. At no time did Plaintiff provide any consent, including any prior 

8 express written consent, to receive the above-referenced message ·or. any other 

9 such wireless spam from Defendant, its agents, or customers. 

1 o 19. The unauthorized text message advertisement received by Plaintiff 

11 invaded her privacy, constituted a nuisance, interfered with her unrestricted use 

12 of her cell phone, including taking up memory storage space, and required her 

13 to spend time reviewing and deleting the message from her cell phone. 

14 CLASSACTION ALLEGATIONS 

15 20. Plaintiff brings this action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

16 Procedure 23(b)(2) and Rule 23(b)(3) on behalf of herself and a nationwide 

17 class (the "Class") defined as: All persons in the United States and its 

18 Territories who, since October 16, 2013, were sent one or more text message 

19 advertisements from Defendant on their cellular telephones and for whom 

20 Defendant does not have a record of any· prior express written consent to 

21 receive such messages. 

22 21. Upon information and belief,. there are hundreds, if not thousands, 

23 of members of the Class such that joinder of all members is impracticable. 

24 22. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the 

25 interests of the other members of the Class. Plaintiff has retained counsel with 

26 substantial experience in prosecuting complex litigation and class actions. 

27 Plaintiff and her counsel are committed to vigorously prosecuting this action on 

28 
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! b eh a l f o f th e m em b er s o f th e C l a ss an d h av e th e fi n an ci a l re so u r ce s t o d o so .

5 N either Plainti ff nor her counsel has any interest adverse to those of the other

9 m e m b e r s o f th e C l a ss .

: 5 9 . A class action is superior to other avai lable methods for fai rly and

= effi ciently adj udicating this controver sy because, among other things, (a)

C j oinder of al l member s of the Class is impracticable; (b) absent a class action ,

E m ost m em bers of th e C lass w ou ld fin d the cost of l i tigatin g their claim s to be

G prohibitiv e, and would have no effective remedy ; and (c) the class treatment of

H common questions of law and fact conserves the resources of the courts and the

!J l i tigants, and prom otes consistency and effi ciency of adj udication .

l ! 5 : . D e fe n d an t h a s a c t e d a n d f a i l e d t o a c t o n groun ds gen eral ly

l 5 appl icable to the Plainti ff and the other members of the Class in transmitti.ng the

l 9 w i reless spam at issue, requi ring the C ourt's im posit ion of uni form rel ief to

!: en su re com patible stan dards o f con du ct tow ard th e m em bers of the Class.

!S 5 = . Th e factual and legal bases of D efendant 's l i.abi l ity to Plainti ff and

!C to th e oth er m em bers o f th e C lass are th e sam e, result in g in inj ury to the

l E P l a in t i f f an d to a l l o f th e o th e r m e m b e r s o f th e C l a s s a s a r e su lt o f th e

!G tran sm ission o f th e w ireless sp am alleged herein . P l a i n t i f f a n d th e oth e r

! H m embers of th e Class h ave all suffered h arm and dam ages as a resul t of

5 J D efendant's un law f ul and w rongful con duct al leged h erein .

5 ! 5 C . T here are m any quest ion s of law an d fact com m on to th e claim s of

5 5 P lainti ff and the other member s of the Class, and those questions predomin ate

5 9 ov er any qu estions th at m ay affect in div idu al m em bers of th e C lass. Com m on

5 : questions for the Class inclu de, but are n ot l im ited, to the fol low ing:

5 S (a) D id D efen dant an d/or i ts agents send on e or m ore tex t

5 C m essage advert isem ents to the m em ber s o f the C lass?

5 E

5 G

  p

1 behalf of the members of the Class and have the financial resources to do so. 

2 Neither Plaintiff nor her counsel has any interest adverse to those of the other 

3 members of the Class. 

4 23. A class action is superior to other available methods for fairly and 

5 efficiently adjudicating this · controversy because, among other things, (a) 

6 joinder of all members of the Class is impracticable; (b) absent a class action, 

7 most members of the Class would find. the cost of litigating their claims to· be 

8 prohibitive, and would have no effective remedy; and ( c) the class treatment of 

9 common questions of law and fact conserves the resources of the courts and the 

1 O litigants, and promotes consistency and efficiency of adjudication. 

11 24. Defendant has acted and failed to act on grounds generally 

12 applicable to the Plaintiff and the other members of the Class in transmitting the 

13 wireless spam at issue, requiring the Court's imposition of uniform relief to 

14 ensure compatible standards of conduct toward the members of the Class. 

15 25. The factual and legal bases of Defendant's liability to Plaintiff and 

16 to the other members of the Class are the same, resulting in injury to the 

17 Plaintiff and to all of the other members of the Class as a result of the 

18 transmission of the wireless spam alleged herein. Plaintiff and the other 

19 members of the Class have all suffered harm and damages as a result of 

20 Defendant's unlawful and wrongful conduct alleged herein. 

21 26. There are many questions of law and fact common to the claims of 

22 Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, and those questions predominate 

23 over any questions that may affect individual members of the Class. Common 

24 questions for the Class include, but are not limited, to the following: 

25 (a) Did Defendant and/or its agents send one or more text 

26 message advertisements to the members of the Class? 

27 

28 
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! (b) D id D efendant and/or i ts agents u se an autom atic telephone

8 dial ing sy stem to tran smit the text message adverti sements

< a t i ssu e ?

> (c) D id D efen dant an d/or its agents tran sm it text m essage

? advert i sem ents after O ctober !A, 8Cl <, to person s w ho did

A not prev iou sly provide D efendant w ith prior express wriften

E con sent to receive such m essages?

F (d) D id the text m essage advertisem ents distributed by

G D ef en d a n t v i o l a te th e T C P A ?

!C (e) A re the Class m ember s entitled to treble dam ages based on

! l th e w i l l f u ln es s o f D efen d a nt ' s c on du ct ?

l 8 ( f) Should D efendant b e enj oined from engaging in su ch

!< c on du c t?

!>

!?

F I R S T C A U S E O F A C T I O M
V i ol a t i on of th e T el e h on e C o nsu m er P r otect i on A ct (>E U .S .C . F 88E)on G eha l f of P l a i nt i f f a n d th e C la ss

l A 8 E . P lainti ff incorporates by reference th e foregoing al legations as i f

!E ful ly set forth herein .

l F 8 F . D e f en d an t s e n t u n s o l ic i te d a n d u n a u th o r i z e d t e x t m e ssa g e

!G adv ertisem ents, including th e m essage identi fi ed in Paragraph !A above, to a l i st

8 C o f w ireless telephon e num bers of P la inti f f an d the oth er m em bers o f th e C lass

8 l u sing equipm ent that had th e capacity at the tim e th e cal ls w ere p laced to store

8 8 or produce telephone num bers to be cal led using a random or sequential number

8 < generator and to dial such num bers.

8 > 8 G . T hese text m essage advert isem ents w ere generic, did not contain

8 ? any in div idu al i zed content, an d w ere sent u sing an autom ated system th at

8 A tran sm itted the text m essages en masse w i thout hum an intervention from a short

8 E code regi stered to D efendant and/or its agents. I n fact, D efendant speci fi cal ly

8 F

  p

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

(b) Did Defendant and/or its agents use an automatic telephone 

dialing system to transmit the text message advertisements 

at issue? 

( c) Did Defendant and/or its agents transmit text message 

advertisements after October 16, 2013, to persons who did 

not previously provide Defendant with prior express written 

consent to receive such messages? 

( d) Did the text message advertisements distributed by 

Defendant violate the TCPA? 

( e) Are the Class members entitled to treble damages based on 

the willfulness of Defendant's conduct? 

(f) Should Defendant be enjoined from engaging in such 

conduct? 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 
Violation of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (47 U.S.C. § 227) 

on behalf of Plaintiff and the Class 

27. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the foregoing allegations as if 

1 7 fully set forth herein. 

18 28. Defendant sent unsolicited and unauthorized text message 

19 advertisements, including the message identified in Paragraph 16 above, to a list 

20 of wireless telephone numbers of Plaintiff and the other members of the Class 

21 using equipment that had the capacity at the time the calls were placed to store 

22 or produce telephone numbers to be called using a random or sequential number 

23 generator and to dial such numbers. 

24 29. These text message advertisements. were generic, did not contain 

25 any individualized content, and were sent using an automated system that 

26 transmitted the text messages en masse without human intervention from a short 

27 code registered to Defendant and/or its agents. In fact, Defendant specifically 

28 
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! notes on its websi te that i t 'cautomatical ly send[s] marketing & promotions to

: your members" and that D efendant "take[s] care of your cu stomer needs w ith

> our A PxtoPilot product. A utoPi lot sends automated mobi le app, text message,

D and emai l campaigns[.]"

E > F . T hese text message advertisements were sent w ithout the pi or

I expr ess written consent o f the Plainti ff and the other member s of the C lass

K > !. D efendant h as, therefore , v i o l ated the TCPA , DK U .S .C .

N ::K(b)( !)(A )( i ii ) . A s a resul t of D efendant's conduct, Plainti ff and the other

Q members of the Class have had their priv acy rights violated, hav e su ffered

!F statutory and actual damages and, under section ::K(b)(>)(B ) , are each enti tled

! ! to, in ter a lza, a m inimum of $EFF.OO in damages for each such violation of the

l : T C P A .

! > > : . T o th e ex t en t D e f en d an t k n ew o r sh o u ld h a v e k n o w n th a t th e c l a ss

l D m embers did not p rov ide prior express w riften con sent to be sent the tex t

! E message advert i sements at i ssu e, the C ourt should , pur suant to section

l I ::K(b)(>)(C), treb le the amount of statutory dam ages recoverable by Plainti ff

!K an d th e o th er m em b er s o f th e C l a ss .

l N W HER EFORE , Plainti ff , on behal f of herself and the Class, prays for the

l Q fol low ing rel ief :

: F l . A n order cert i fy ing the Class as defin ed above;

: ! : . A n award of the greater of statutor y or actual damages;

: : > . A n inj unction requiring D efendant to cease sending al l

: > unauthorized automated text messages via SM S shor t codes;

: D D . Pre-j udgment interest from the date of fi l ing this sui t;

: E E A n award of reasonab le aftom eys' fees and costs; and

:I I . Su ch f urt h er an d o th er r e li e f th e C o u rt d eem s r eason ab l e an d

: K j ust .

: N

C l&CsAction Complaint g

1 notes on its website that it "automatically send[s] marketing & promotions to 

2 your members" and that Defendant "take[s] care of your customer needs with 

3 our AutoPilot product. AutoPilot sends automated mobile app, text message, 

4 and email campaigns[.]" 

5 30. These text message advertisements were sent without the prior 

6 express written consent of the Plaintiff and the other members of the Class 

7 31. Defendant has, therefore, violated the TCPA, 4 7 U.S.C. § 

8 227(b)(l)(A)(iii). As a result of Defendant's conduct, Plaintiff and the other 

9 members of the Class have had their privacy rights violated, have suffered 

10 statutory and actual damages and, under section 227(b)(3)(B), are each entitled 

11 to, inter alia, a minimum of $500.00 in damages for each such violation of the 

12 TCPA. 

13 32. To the extent Defendant knew or should have known that the class 

14 members did not provide prior express written consent to be sent the text 

15 message advertisements at issue, the Court should, pursuant to section 

16 227(b )(3)(C), treble the amount of statutory damages recoverable by Plaintiff 

17 and the other members of the Class. 

18 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and the Class, prays for the 

19 following relief: 

20 1. An order certifyingthe Class as defined above; 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

An award of the greater of statutory or actual damages; 

An injunction requiring Defendant to cease sending all 

unauthorized automated text messages via SMS short codes; 

Pre-judgment interest from the date of filing this suit; 

An award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs; and 

Such further and other relief the Court deems reasonable and 

27 just. 

28 
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! J U R Y D E M A N D

+ P lainti ff requests trial by ju ry of al l claims that can be so tried.

A

D ated : A pn l D, +F !G
H

R espectful ly submitted,

I M C G U I R E L A W , P .C .
ZA V E R I T A B B , A PC

D

G B y : s/ D eval R . Z s eri
D ev a l R . Z a v er i

U

V
% d ; ggY-isu ta ti ve Classf or P la int K el ly Sa unders

!F

l l

E mai l : dev@ zav eritabb.com

!+

l A

!H

!I

!D

!G

!U

!V

+ F

+ !

+ +

+ A

+ H

+ I

+ D

+ G

+ U

C lcssAction Complaint . g . .

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

JURY.DEMAND 

Plaintiff requests trial by jury of all claims that can. be so tried. 

Dated: April 6, 2017 

Class Action Complaint 

Respectfully submitted, 

MCGUIRE LAW, P.C. 
ZAVERI TABB, APC 

By: s/ Deval R. Zaveri 
Deval R. Zaveri 

Attorneys for P laintif.f Kelly Saunders 
and the Putative · Class 

Email: dev@zaveritabb.com 

9 
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Fede.rat question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. -1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment 
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes 
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked. . . . .. 
Diversity_of citizenship. {4) This .refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. ···\Vhe~Jfox 4is checked, the 
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take preced~nce over diversity 
cases.) 

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above .. Mark this 
section for each principal party. 

Nature of Suit. Place an ''X'' in the appropriate box. If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is 
sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature ofsU:it. If the cause fits more than 
onenature of suit, select the most definitive. 

Origin. Place an·"X" in one of the six boxes. 
Original Proceedings. (l) Cases which originate in the United States district courts. 
l{emoved from State Court. _· (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may. be removed to the district courts under Title 28 US.C., · Section 1441. 
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box. . . ·. .. • 
Remanded from AppeUate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the districtcourt for further action. Use the daJe of remand asthe filing 
date. · 

Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date .. 
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not usethisfor withindistticttransfers or 
multidistrict litigation transfers. . .· .. 
Multi district Litigation. ( 6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title .28 U. S.C . .Section 1407. 
When this box is checked, do not check (5) above. 

VI. Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional 
statutes unless diversity. · Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable ·service 

VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Pl~ce an "XII in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P. 
Demand. In this space enterthe actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction. 
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether.or not a jury is being demanded. 

VIII. Related Cases . . This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket 
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases. 

Date and Attorney Signature. Date arid sign the civil cover sheet. 

Case 3:17-cv-00702-CAB-AGS   Document 1-1   Filed 04/06/17   PageID.11   Page 2 of 2



ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: FiveStars Loyalty Pegged with Lawsuit Over Unsolicited Texts

https://www.classaction.org/news/fivestars-loyalty-pegged-with-lawsuit-over-unsolicited-texts



